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United States

Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) othe Securities Exchange Act of 193
For the quarterly period ended: April 2, 2011

O Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) bthe Securities Exchange Act of 193

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-31410

COTT CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

CANADA 98-0154711
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

6525 VISCOUNT ROAD
MISSISSAUGA, ONTARIO

5519 WEST IDLEWILD AVE L4V 1H6
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33634
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(905) 672-1900 and (813) 313-1800

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementshe past 90 days. Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&b site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the prawgd2 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submit @ost such files). Yedl No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of “largeederated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “small@porting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fili [ Accelerated filel

Non-accelerated file [0  (do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [J
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgle Act). Yes[O No
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.

Class Outstanding at May 11, 2011
Common Stock, no par value per sh 94,750,120 share
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Financial Statements

Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amig)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale:

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm
Restructuring

Operating income

Other expense, n
Interest expense, n

Income before income taxes

Income tax expens

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest:

Net income attributed to Cott Corporation

Net income per common share attributed to Cott Corpration
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average outstanding shares (thousands) ahuted to Cott Corporation
Basic
Diluted

For the Three Months Ended

April 2, 2011

$

534.1

464.5

69.€
45.1

245

0.8

14.4

@ B

9.2
1.6
7.7
0.8

6.8

0.07
0.07

94,07¢
95,32¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélemsolidated financial statements.

1

April 3, 2010

$ 362.¢
305.5

57.2

32.4
0.2

(0.5
2511

18
6.2

17.1

4.4

$ 12.7
1.2

$ 0.14
$ 0.14

80,37+
80,84(
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Cott Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)

Unaudited

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $7.3 ($&3®f January 1, 201

Income taxes recoverak
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other ass
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings

Current maturities of lor-term debi
Contingent consideration ew-out
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities

Long-term deb
Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and Contingenci- Note 10

Equity

Capital stock, no pe- 94,750,120 shares issu
Treasury stocl

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive |

Total Cott Corporation equity
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

April 2, 2011

$ 35.¢
245.¢

4.8

223.]
31.C

540.¢

506.¢
131.1
362.<
2.2
10.1

$ 1,552

$ 35.2
5.9

32.¢
257.¢
331.¢
604 .

43.C
21.2

1,000.f

395.¢
@2.1)
40.€

113.

(7.6)
540.(

12.5
552.¢
$ 1552

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélmmsolidated financial statements.

2

January 1, 201:

$ 48.2
213.¢

0.2

215:%

32.7

510.c

503.¢
130.z
371.1
2.5
11.:

$  1,529.

6.C
32.2
276.¢

322.5

605.£
43.¢
22.2

994.(

395.¢
(3.2)
40.€

106.5

(17.5)
522.2

13.C
535.2
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited

Operating Activities

Net income

Depreciation & amortizatio

Amortization of financing fee

Shar-based compensation expel

Increase (decrease) in deferred income t

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm

Loss on buyback of Note

Contract termination gai

Contract termination paymer

Other nor-cash item:

Change in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Income taxes recoverak

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi

Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant & equipme
Additions to intangible:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipn
Net cash used in investing activiti

Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debt
Borrowings under ABL
Payments under AB
Distributions to no-controlling interest:
Financing fee:
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Net decrease in cash & cash equivalen
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash & cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow information
Cash paid for intere:
Cash paid (received) for income taxes,

For the Three Months Ended

April 2, 2011

(0.1)
1.9
(2.)
(25.6)

(12.5)

0.1
(12.9

(1.9)

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélemsolidated financial statements.

3

April 3, 2010

$ 127
15.¢

0.5

0.5

(0.1)

0.2

0.1

(0.4)

(3.9

3.

(1.9
(12.7)
0.€
(0.E)
(3.4)
17.2
8.2

(7.6)
(1.7)
0.1

(8.9

(13.2)

58.¢
(50.5)
(1.9

(0.9)

(7.5)

__ 0z
7.7)

30.¢

$ 237

o)
2

(13.9)

* &
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Equity
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)

Unaudited

Balance at January 2, 201!

Treasury shares issu- PSU Plai
Tax impact of PSU distributior
Treasury shares issu- EISPP
Shar-based compensatic
Distributions to non-controlling
interests
Comprehensive incorr
Currency translation
adjustmen
Pension liabilities
Unrealized loss on
derivative instruments,
net of income ta
Net income

Balance at April 3, 2010

Balance at January 1, 201:

Treasury shares issu- PSU Plai
Treasury shares issu- EISPP
Shar+-based compensatic
Distributions to non-controlling
interests
Comprehensive incorr
Currency translation
adjustmen
Pension liabilities
Unrealized gain on
derivative instruments,
net of income ta;
Net income

Balance at April 2, 2011

Cott Corporation Equity

Accumulated

Number of Number of Additional Non-
Common Treasury Common  Treasury Retainec  Comprehensive  Controlling
Shares Shares Paid-in- Total
(In thousands)  (In thousands) Shares Shares Capital Earnings  (Loss) Income Interests Equity
81,33: 1,50¢ $322F $ (44 $ 374 $ 518 $ (215 $ 155 $401.°
— (437) — 1.1 (1.2) — — — —
- - - - 0.7 - - - 0.7
- (1) — - — - — — -
— — — — 0.5 — — — 0.
— — — — — — — (1.9 (1.9
— — — — — — 0.3 — 0.2
- - - - - - 0.2 - 0.2
— — — — — — (0.1) — (0.)
— — — — — 11.5 — 1.2 12,
81,33: 1,066 $322F $ (3.3 $ 37.F $ 63° $ (20.9 $ 14.€ $413.
94,75( 1,051 $395€ $ (3.2 $ 40 $106E5 $ (175 $ 13.C $535.
— (181) — 0.5 (0.5) — — — —
— (19€6) — 0.€ (06 — — — —
— — — — 1.1 — — — 1.1
= = = = = = = (1.6 (1.6
— — — — — — 9.5 — 9.5
— — — — — — 0.2 — 0.2
— — — — — — 0.2 — 0.2
— — — — — 6.8 — 0.9 7.7
94,75( 674 $395.€6 $ (2.1) $ 40.6 $113.: $ (7.6) $ 12.5 $552.:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.

4
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Cott Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended
April 2, 2011 April 3, 2010
Net income $ 7.7 $ 12.7
Other comprehensive income (los
Currency translation adjustme 9.5 0.2
Pension liabilities 0.2 0.2
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instrumengg, of tax 0.2 0.7
Total other comprehensive income 9.6 0.4
Comprehensive income $ 17.€ $ 131
Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest: 0.8 1.2
Comprehensive income attributed to Cott Corporation $ 16.7 $ 11.€

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélmmsolidated financial statements.

5
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Cott Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Unaudited

Note 1 — Business and Recent Accounting Pronouncente
Description of Busines:

” ou ” ” ou ”

Cott Corporation, together with its consolidatedsidiaries (“Cott,” “the Company,” “our Company,Cbtt Corporation,” “we,” “us,’or
“our”), is the world’s largest retailer brand beage company. Our product lines include carbonatéidisinks (“CSDs"), clear, still and
sparkling flavored waters, energy-related drink&g, juice-based products, bottled water and réadyink teas.

Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying interim unaudited consolidatedrfaial statements have been prepared in accordatitéhe instructions to Form
10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X and in ac@orce with U.S. generally accepted accounting glasi(“GAAP”) for interim financial
reporting. Accordingly, they do not include all@nfnation and notes presented in the annual cormdetidinancial statements in conformity
with U.S. GAAP. In the opinion of management, ajustments (consisting of normal recurring acciuetsisidered necessary for a fair
statement of our results of operations for therintgoeriods reported and of our financial conditasnof the date of the interim balance sheet
have been included. This Quarterly Report on Fobr@QIshould be read in conjunction with the annuaited consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes in our AnnuabiRep Form 10-K for the year ended January 1, 20hg& accounting policies used in
these interim consolidated financial statementcansistent with those used in the annual congelitiinancial statements.

The presentation of these interim consolidatedniife statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP regsi management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoepested in the consolidated financial statementiseaxtompanying notes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

ASU 201+-13 — Effect of Denominating the Exercise Prica &are-Based Payment Award in the Currency oMasket in Which the
Underlying Equity Security Trades

In April 2010, the Financial Accounting Standardsad (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdaeSt”) 2010-13, “Effect of
Denominating the Exercise Price of a Share-BasgthBat Award in the Currency of the Market in Whtble Underlying Equity Security
Trades,” to address the classification of an eng#aghardsase payment award with an exercise price denoadriatthe currency of a mark
in which the underlying equity security trades.sThpdate provides amendments to Topic 718 to gltrét an employee shabased payme
award with an exercise price denominated in theecualy of a market in which a substantial portionhaf entity’s equity securities trades
should not be considered to contain a conditiohithaot a market, performance, or service condititherefore, an entity would not classify
such an award as a liability if it otherwise quabfas equity. We adopted the provisions of ttaadard during the first quarter of 2011. This
standard does not have an impact on our consdfidat@ncial statements.
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Note 2 — Acquisition

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitibe {Cliffstar Acquisition”) of substantially all dhe assets and liabilities of Cliffstar
Corporation (“Cliffstar”)and its affiliated companies for approximately $80@illion payable in cash, $14.0 million in defegrconsideratio
to be paid over three years and contingent coreiderof up to $55.0 million. The first $15.0 mdh of the contingent consideration is based
upon the achievement of milestones in certain esiparprojects in 2010, which were achieved in 20k remainder of the contingent
consideration is based on the achievement of ogpiformance measures during the fiscal year gnthnuary 1, 2011. The contingent
consideration was $32.9 million as of April 2, 204hd is payable no later than July 29, 2011.

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€iar Corporation of certain objections to thefpemance measures used to
calculate the contingent consideration, and tHersasserted a claim for amounts in excess of ith@uats accrued as contingent consideration
at April 2, 2011. We believe the contingent congatien has been properly calculated in accordarnittethe asset purchase agreement an
have not adjusted our estimated fair value of tirdingent consideration for the objections raisgdhe seller. We believe that our estimated
fair value and assumptions are reasonable, but thesignificant judgment involved. We will resoltreese matters in accordance with the
asset purchase agreement and final amounts paidmatgyially vary from our current estimated faiftuea Changes in the fair value of
contingent consideration will be recorded in owat&tent of Operations

Supplemental Pro Forma Data (unaudited)

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortiwan for the three months ended April 3, 2010 repra the combined results of our
operations as if the Cliffstar Acquisition had oaed on January 3, 2010. The unaudited pro forrealt®reflect certain adjustments relate
the Cliffstar Acquisition such as increased amatian expense on acquired intangible assets regutom the preliminary fair valuation of
assets acquired. The unaudited pro forma finandi@imation does not necessarily reflect the ressoitoperations that would have occurred
had we operated as a single entity during suclogeri

For the Three Months Endec

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amoul April 3, 2010

Revenue $ 528.¢
Net income 16.Z
Net income per common share, dilu $ 0.17

Note 3 — Share-Based Compensation

The table below summarizes the share-based contmeneapense for the three months ended April 2128nd April 3, 2010. This
sharebased compensation expense was recorded in sgjéngyal, and administrative expenses in our Calated Statements of Operatio
As used below, “PSUs” mean performance share grétsted under our Amended and Restated Perforn&mae Unit Plan. As used below:
(i) “Performance-based RSUs” mean restricted shaits with performance-based vesting granted utifdeCompany’s 2010 Equity
Incentive Plan (the “2010 Equity Incentive Plargid (ii) “Time-based RSUs” mean restricted shaitswnith time-based vesting granted
under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan.

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars April 2, 2011 April 3, 2010
Stock options $ — $ 0.3
PSUs — 0.1
Performanc-based RSU 0.5 —

Time-based RSU 0.€ —

Share appreciation righ — 0.1
Total $ 1.1 $ 0.5
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As of April 2, 2011, the unrecognized share-basedpensation expense and years we expect to reeogsituture compensation
expense were as follows:

Unrecognized sharebasec Weighted average year

compensation expense as expected to recognize
(in millions of U.S. dollars of April 2, 2011 compensation
Performanc-based RSU $ 4.7 1.8
Time-based RSU 5.1 1.8
Total $ 9.8

Option activity for the three months ended AprikR11 was as follows:

Weighted averagt

Shares exercise price
(in thousands (Canadian $
Balance at January 1, 20 704 $ 16.61
Awarded — —
Forfeited or expirel — —
Outstanding at April 2, 201 704 16.6
Exercisable at April 2, 201 704 $ 16.61

During the three months ended April 2, 2011, EISPE), Performance-based RSU and Time-based RSlityaetas as follows:

Number of
Performance-basec Number of
(in thousands EISPP Number of PSU:¢ RSUs Time-based RSU
Balance at January 1, 20 18¢ 18¢ 1,72% 1,39
Awarded — — — —
Issuec (189 (18¢) — —
Forfeited — — — —
Outstanding at April 2, 201 — — 1,72 1,39

Average Canadian to U.S. Dollar Exchange Rate fohe Three Months Ended April 2, 2011

Various compensation components in Note 3 arealisd in Canadian dollars. The table below repregbetaverage Canadian dolla
U.S. dollar exchange rate for the three months @érgeil 2, 2011:

For the Three Months Endec
April 2, 2011
Average exchange ra $ 1.01¢

Note 4 — Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $1.6 million on pretax inreaf$9.3 million for the three months ended AgriR011, as compared to an
income tax expense of $4.4 million on pretax incah®17.1 million for the three months ended ABiR010. The estimated effective tax
rate applied to income from operations for theghrenths ended April 2, 2011 differs from the dtaturate due mostly to foreign tax rate
differentials and tax exempt income.
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Note 5 — Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed\bgidg net income by the weighted average numbeoaimon shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted net income per commoarslis calculated using the weighted average nuofimmon shares outstanding
adjusted to include the effect, if dilutive, of teercise of in-the-money stock options, PSUs,dPerdnce-based RSUs and Time-based
RSUs.

A reconciliation of the denominators of the basid diluted net income per common share computat#oas follows:

For the Three Months Ended

(in thousands April 2, 2011 April 3, 2010
Weighted average number of shares outstar- basic 94,07¢ 80,37+
Dilutive effect of stock option 19¢€ 27¢
Dilutive effect of PSU: — 18¢
Dilutive effect of Performan-based RSU 43C —

Dilutive effect of Tim«based RSU 62€ —

Weighted average number of shares outstar- diluted 95,32¢ 80,84(

We excluded 354,000 (April 3, 2010 — 452,150) amifrom the computation of diluted net income peare because the options’
exercise price was greater than the average mpurriket of the common shares. Shares purchased mp#remarket and held by independent
trusts are categorized as treasury shares undbéecagp accounting rules. We excluded 674,397 (KprR2010 — 957,104) of treasury shares
held in various trusts in the calculation of baamid diluted earnings per share.

Note 6 — Segment Reporting

We produce, package and distribute private-lab&<€; 8lear, still and sparkling flavored waters, rggerelated drinks, juice, juice-
based products, bottled water and ready-to-driak te regional and national grocery, mass-merckaraiid wholesale chains and customers
in the dollar convenience and drug channels thrdivghreportable segments — North America (whiatiudes our U.S. reporting unit and
Canada reporting unit), U.K. (which includes ouritgd Kingdom reporting unit and our Continental &ugan reporting unit), Mexico, Royal
Crown International (“RCI”) and All Other.

Operating Segments

North United All

(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Other Total
For the Three Months Ended
April 2, 2011
External revenu? $ 428.¢ $ 86.5 $114 $ 7€ $— $ 534.1
Depreciation and amortizatic 19.7 34 0.5 — — 23.€
Operating income (los! 20.¢ 3.0 (1.5 2.2 — 24.F
Additions to property, plant & equipme 10.z 2.3 — — — 12.t
As of April 2, 2011
Property, plant & equipmel $ 399¢6 $ 93€ $13z $— $— ¢ 506
Goodwill 126.¢ — — 4.k — 131.1
Intangibles and other ass: 345.¢ 15.€ 0.8 — — 362.:
Total asset? 1,290.: 215t 34.1 12.: 0.7 1,552.¢
! Intersegment revenue between North America andttier operating segments was $4.2 million for tire¢ months ended April 2,

2011.

2 Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentates receivable

9
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Operating Segments

North United All

(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Other Total
For the Three Months Ended
April 3, 2010
External revenu? $ 2632 $ 79.7 P11 $82 $— ¢ 362¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 12.1 3.3 0.t — — 15.¢
Operating income (los! 20.¢ 3.C (1.9 3.C — 25.1
Restructuring (0.5) — — — — (0.5
Additions to property, plant & equipme 4.¢ 2.4 0.2 — — 7.€
As of January 1, 2011
Property, plant & equipmel $ 4004 $ 90.z $13z $— $— $ 503¢
Goodwill 125.5 — — 4.5 — 130.2
Intangibles and other ass: 354.7 15.7 0.7 — — 371.]
Total asset? 1,275.¢ 207 . 31t 13.7 0.7 1,529.:
! Intersegment revenue between North America andttier operating segments was $5.9 million for treeé months ended April 3,

2010.

Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentates receivable

For the three months ended April 2, 2011, salé¥abMart accounted for 33.0% (April 3, 2010 — 32)38bour total revenues, 36.7%
of our North America operating segment revenuesi(8p2010 — 36.7%), 15.4% of our U.K. operatirggsient revenues (April 3, 2010 —
16.8%), and 52.0% of our Mexico operating segmewenues (April 3, 2010 — 45.6%).

Credit risk arises from the potential default afisstomer in meeting its financial obligations to @sncentrations of credit exposure r
arise with a group of customers that have simii@nemic characteristics or that are located insérae geographic region. The ability of si
customers to meet obligations would be similarfeeid by changing economic, political or otherditions. We are not currently aware of
any facts that would create a material credit risk.

Revenues are attributed to countries based orotla¢ion of the plant. Revenues by reporting unitenss follows:

For the Three Months Ended

1

(in millions of U.S. dollars April 2, 2011 April 3, 2010
United State: $ 388.7 $ 235.¢
Canads 52.1 40.1
United Kingdom 86.:° 80.£
Mexico 11.4 11.¢
RCI 7.€ 8.2
Elimination? (12.0 (13.9

$ 534.1 $ 362.¢

Represents intersegment revenue among our repamitgy of which $4.2 million and $5.9 million regzent intersegment revenue

between North America and our other operating segsrfer the three months ended April 2, 2011 andl&p 2010, respectively

The revenue by product table for the three montladee April 3, 2010 has been reclassified to sephratesent the category “Juice”

which is now a significant portion of our revenuesdo the Cliffstar Acquisition.

10
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Revenues by product were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $156.2 $ 424 $ 93 $— $208.(
Juice 160.( 2.2 0.8 — 163.C
Concentrat 2.2 — — 7.€ 9.6
All other products 110.2 41.7 1.3 — 153.Z
Total $428.6 $ 86.2 $11.<4 $7.€ $534.]
For the Three Months Ended April 3, 2010
North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $166.7 $ 33t $10<4 $— $210.¢
Juice — 1.4 0.3 — 1.7
Concentrate 2.C 1.3 — 8.2 11.5
All other products 94.t 43.F 1.1 — 139.]
Total $263.2 $ 79.7 $11.¢6 $82 $362.C
Property, plant and equipment by geographic arae a follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars April 2, 2011 January 1, 201:

United State: $ 349.: $ 350.¢

Canads 50.¢€ 50.C

United Kingdom 93.€ 90.2

Mexico 13.2 13.2

$ 506.€ $ 503.¢

Note 7 — Inventories

(in millions of U.S. dollars April 2, 2011 January 1, 201:

Raw material $ 91.C $ 90.1

Finished good 112.¢ 107.:

Other 19.2 18.1

$ 223.1 $ 215.F

11
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Note 8 — Intangibles and Other Assets including Gatwill

April 2, 2011
Accumulated
(in millions of U.S. dollars Cost Amortization Net
Intangibles
Not subject to amortizatic
Rights $ 45.C $ — $ 45.C
Subject to amortizatio
Customer relationshiy 370.1 101.2 268.¢
Trademarks 27.€ 20.2 7.4
Information technolog' 60.€ 54.1 6.5
Other 10.: 3.8 6.5
468.¢ 179.% 289.:
513.¢ 179.% 334.:
Other Assets
Financing cost 23.2 4.4 18.¢
Deposits 7.€ — 7.€
Other 2.1 0.5 1.€
32.¢ 4.9 28.C
Total Intangibles & Other Assets $546.£ $ 184. $362.2

Amortization expense of intangible and other asketthe three months ended April 2, 2011 and Apri2010 was $8.9 million and $!
million, respectively.

The estimated amortization expense for intangibles the next five years is:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Remainder of 201 $ 23.¢
2012 29.€
2013 28.€
2014 26.¢
2015 24.¢€
Thereafte! 155.¢

$289.2

Goodwill is not subject to amortization and therodpain goodwill reflects fluctuations in foreignroency exchange rates.

12
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Note 9 — Debt
Our total debt was as follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars April 2, 2011 January 1, 201:
8.375% senior notes due in 2Ct $ 215.( $ 215.(
8.125% senior notes due in 2C 375.( 375.(
ABL facility 35.2 7.€
GE obligation 15.5 16.5
Other capital lease 5.€ 5.€
Other deb 1.¢ 2.C
Total debt 648.2 622.2
Less: Sho-term borrowings and current de
ABL facility 35.2 7.8
Total shor-term borrowings 35.2 7.8
GE obligation- current maturitie: 4.2 4.1
Other capital lease- current maturitie: 1.4 14
Other deb- current maturitie: 0.3 0.5
Total current debt 41.1 13.¢
Long-term debt before discou 607.1 608.:
Less discount on 8.375% no! (2.7 (2.9
Total long-term debi $ 604. $ 605.£

! Our 8.375% senior notes were issued at a discdunéd25% on November 13, 20C

Debt
Asset Based Lending Facili

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agre¢méh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thattedkan asset-based lending
credit facility (the “ABL facility”) to provide financing for our North America, Unit&éhgdom and Mexico operating segments. In connae
with the Cliffstar Acquisition, we refinanced thé3A facility on August 17, 2010 to, among other tigénprovide for the Cliffstar Acquisition,
the issuance of $375.0 million of 8.125% senioeadhat are due on September 1, 2018 (the “2018sNa@nd the application of net proce
therefrom, the underwritten public offering of 1803000 common shares at a price of $5.67 per stmtéhe application of net proceeds
therefrom and to increase the amount availabl®édorowings to $275.0 million. We drew down a pantiaf the indebtedness under the ABL
facility in order to fund the Cliffstar AcquisitioWe incurred $5.4 million of financing fees in eattion with the refinancing of the ABL
facility. The financing fees are being amortizethgshe straight-line method over a four-year perio

As of April 2, 2011, we had $35.2 million in borrowgs under the ABL facility outstanding. The conmmént fee was 0.5% per annum
of the unused commitment, which was $227.6 milksrof April 2, 2011.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued the 2018 Notes. 3$eer of the 2018 Notes is Cott Beverages Inc.wieudand most of our U.S.,
Canadian and United Kingdom subsidiaries guaratihte@018 Notes. The interest on the 2018 Noteayalge semi-annually on Marct#'1
and Septembersl of each year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in contien with the 2018 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the straight-
line method over an eight-year period, which repnés the duration of the 2018 Notes. The amortimagixpense calculated under the straight-
line method does not differ materially from theeetive-interest method.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 millionevfiar notes that are due on November 15, 2017207 Notes”).The 2017 Note
were issued at a $3.1 million discount. The issfi¢he 2017 Notes is Cott Beverages Inc., but wkraaost of our U.S., Canadian and United
Kingdom subsidiaries guarantee the 2017 Notes.iftkeest on the 2017 Notes is payable semi-annoallylay 15" and November 5 of
each year.

13



Table of Contents

We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in costien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the straight-
line method over an eight-year period, which repnés the duration of the 2017 Notes. The amortimatixpense calculated under the straight-
line method does not differ materially from theeetive-interest method.

8% Senior Subordinated Notes due in 2011

We repurchased the remaining outstanding 8% senlwordinated notes due December 15, 2011 (the “R@tds”)for $11.1 million or
February 1, 2010, and recorded a loss on buyba$R.dfmillion. The 2011 Notes acquired by us haserbretired, and we have discontinued
the payment of interest.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to various claims and legal procegsdiith respect to matters such as governmergalations, and other actions aris
out of the normal course of business. Managemdigves that the resolution of these matters witlimave a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations, or célietv.

We had $9.1 million in standby letters of creditstanding as of April 2, 2011 (April 3, 2010 — $7adlion).

Note 11 — Shares Held in Trust Treated as Treasurghares

In May 2008, an independent trustee acting undeaiceof our benefit plans purchased 2.3 millioroaf common shares to be used to
satisfy future liabilities under the Amended andfted Performance Share Unit Plan (the “PSU Plamd)the Restated Executive Incentive
Share Purchase Plan (the “Restated EISPP”). Dtinmghree months ended April 2, 2011, we distrid@e million shares from the trust to
satisfy certain PSU obligations that had vestediriguhe three months ended April 2, 2011, we itigted 0.2 million shares from the trust
satisfy certain Restated EISPP obligations thatestied. As of April 2, 2011, 0.4 million and 0.3lion shares were held in trust, and
accounted for as treasury shares under applicabfauating rules. Treasury shares are reportedsit co

Subsequent to the adoption of the 2010 Equity ltieerPlan on May 4, 2010, the Human Resources amdp@nsation Committee of
the Board of Directors (the “HRCC") determined thattain of Cott’s long-term incentive plans werelonger needed and terminated the
PSU Plan and the Restated EISPP effective FebA8rg011. No further awards will be granted undehsplans, as future awards will be
made under the Company’s 2010 Equity Incentive.Plan

Note 12 — Hedging Transactions and Derivative Finasial Instruments

The Company is directly and indirectly affecteddimanges in foreign currency market conditions. €hrdsmnges in market conditions
may adversely impact the Company’s financial penfance and are referred to as market risks. The @oypvhen deemed appropriate by
management, uses derivatives as a risk manageaw b tmitigate the potential impact of foreign @mcy market risks. The Company’s
foreign currency market risks are managed by th@gzmy through the use of derivative instruments.

The Company purchases forward contract derivatisgiments. Forward contracts are agreements tobsgll a quantity of a curren
at a predetermined future date, and at a predetechmiate or price. We do not enter into derivafinancial instruments for trading purposes.

All derivatives are carried at fair value in therSolidated Balance Sheets in the line item accquantable and accrued liabilities. The
carrying values of the derivatives reflect the ictpaf legally enforceable agreements with the samumterparties. These allow the Company
to net settle positive and negative positions tasmed liabilities) arising from different transiacts with the same counterparty.

The accounting for gains and losses that resutt thanges in the fair values of derivative instroteelepends on whether the
derivatives have been designated and qualify agihgdnstruments and the type of hedging relatiggshrhe changes in fair values of
derivatives that have been designated and quaifiaah flow hedges are recorded in accumulated otimeprehensive income (loss)
(“AOCI") and are reclassified into the line itemtime Consolidated Statements of Operations in wifiethedged items are recorded in the
same period the hedged items affect earnings. ®tieethigh degree of effectiveness between theihgdgstruments and the underlying
exposures being hedged, fluctuations in the valukeoderivative instruments are generally offsetbhanges in the fair values or cash flows
of the underlying exposures being hedged.
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The Company formally designates and documentsgcaption, the financial instrument as a hedgesgexific underlying exposure, the
risk management objective and the strategy for takieg the hedge transaction. In addition, the @any formally assesses both at the
inception and at least quarterly thereafter, whete financial instruments used in hedging tratisas are effective at offsetting changes in
either the fair values or cash flows of the relataderlying exposures. Any ineffective portion dfrencial instrument’s change in fair value
is immediately recognized into earnings.

The Company estimates the fair values of its déxiga based on quoted market prices or pricing risaging current market rates
(refer to Note 13). The notional amounts of thawddive financial instruments do not necessarilyresent amounts exchanged by the parties
and, therefore, are not a direct measure of ovosxe to the financial risks described above. Theumts exchanged are calculated by
reference to the notional amounts and by otherderhthe derivatives, such as interest rates,dareurrency exchange rates or other finar
indices. The Company does not view the fair vahfdts derivatives in isolation, but rather in rtéa to the fair values or cash flows of the
underlying hedged transactions. All of our derives are straightforward over-the-counter instrumevith liquid markets.

Credit Risk Associated with Derivatives

We have established strict counterparty creditgjiids and enter into transactions only with finahinstitutions of investment grade
better. We mitigate pre-settlement risk by beingmptted to net settle for transactions with the saraunterparty.

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy

The Company uses cash flow hedges to minimize @hiahility in cash flows of assets or liabilitiesforecasted transactions caused by
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates Thanges in the fair values of derivatives deseghas cash flow hedges are recorded in
AOCI and are reclassified into the line item in @ensolidated Statements of Operations in whicth#dged items are recorded in the same
period the hedged items affect earnings. The claimgiir values of hedges that are determinecetméffective are immediately reclassified
from AOCI into earnings. The Company did not digawre any cash flow hedging relationships durirg ttiree months ended April 2, 2011.
The maximum length of time over which the Compaagdes its exposure to future cash flows is typjoatie year.

The Company maintains a foreign currency cash fiedging program to reduce the risk that our praverd activities will be
adversely affected by changes in foreign currexchange rates. We enter into forward contractetigk certain portions of forecasted cash
flows denominated in foreign currencies. When th8.dollar strengthens significantly against foretgirrencies, the decline in the present
value of future foreign currency cash flows is @it offset by gains in the fair value of the deive instruments. Conversely, when the |
dollar weakens as compared to other currenciesntiease in the present value of future foreigmency cash flows is partially offset by
losses in the fair value of the derivative instrumse The total notional value of derivatives thaté been designated and qualify for the
Company'’s foreign currency cash flow hedging prages of April 2, 2011 was approximately $16.0 raiili

The following table summarizes the Company’s deivesinstruments as of April 2, 2011:

(in millions of U.S. dollars Liability Derivatives

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging

instruments Balance Sheet location Fair Value
Foreign exchange contrac Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 1.C

The settlement of our derivative instruments reslih a charge to cost of sales of less than $@l@mnfor the three months ended
April 2, 2011.
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Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements

ASC No. 820 defines fair value as the exchangesfhat would be received for an asset or paidatasfer a liability (an exit price) in
the principal or most advantageous market for §setor liability in an orderly transaction betwaearket participants at the measurement
date. Additionally, the inputs used to measurevalue are prioritized based on a three-level hi¢gna This hierarchy requires entities to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirtlizeuse of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of inputs used to measure fairevate as follows:
» Level 1- Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

» Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prigeluded in Level 1, such as quoted prices fmilar assets and liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or massets and liabilities in markets that areawtive; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observablkendata

* Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supportelitthy or no market activity and that are signéfitt to the fair value of the assets
or liabilities. This includes certain pricing modgtiiscounted cash flow methodologies and sim@lahitiques that use significant
unobservable input:

We have certain assets and liabilities that araired to be recorded at fair value on a recurriagi®in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

The following table summarizes those assets abditias measured at fair value on a recurring $asi of April 2, 2011:

April 2, 2011
Netting Fair Value
(in millions of U.S. dollars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Adjustment Measurement:
Liabilities
Derivatives $— $ 1.C $— $ — $ 1.C
Contingent Consideratic — — 32.¢ — 32.¢
Total Liabilities $— $ 1.C $32.¢ $ — $ 33.¢

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reflected in the Consolid&athnce Sheets for cash, receivables, payables;tem borrowings and long-term
debt approximate their respective fair values, pkas otherwise indicated. The carrying valuesesiunated fair values of our significant
outstanding debt as of April 2, 2011 were as folow

April 2, 2011
Carrying

Fair
(in millions of U.S. dollars Value Value
8.375% senior notes due in 2Ct $215.( $231.1
8.125% senior notes due in 2Ct 375.C 401.7
ABL facility 35.2 35.2
Total $625.2 $668.(

! The fair values are based on the trading levelshéaidffer prices observed by a market particip

Fair value of contingent consideration

The fair value of the contingent consideration,ahhis payable no later than July 29, 2011, wasdasssignificant inputs not observed
in the market and thus represented a Level 3 im&ni. Level 3 instruments are valued based on @mekle inputs that are supported by
little or no market activity and reflect our owrsamptions in measuring fair value.
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(in millions of U.S. dollars April 2, 2011
Beginning balanc $ 32.2

Accretion to fair value 0.7
Ending balanci $ 32¢

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€iar Corporation of certain objections to thefpemance measures used to
calculate the contingent consideration, and tHersasserted a claim for amounts in excess of ith@uats accrued as contingent consideration
at April 2, 2011. We believe the contingent consatien has been properly calculated in accordarnittethe asset purchase agreement an
have not adjusted our estimated fair value of tirgingent consideration for the objections raisgdhe seller. We believe that our estimated
fair value and assumptions are reasonable, bug thesignificant judgment involved. We will resoltreese matters in accordance with the
asset purchase agreement and final amounts paidmatgyially vary from our current estimated faifuea Changes in the fair value of
contingent consideration will be recorded in owt&ment of Operations

Note 14 — Guarantor Subsidiaries

The 2017 Notes and 2018 Notes issued by our whellyed subsidiary, Cott Beverages, Inc., are unt¢mmdilly guaranteed on a senior
basis pursuant to guarantees by Cott Corporatidrcartain other wholly owned subsidiaries (the “améor Subsidiaries”). Such guarantees
are full, unconditional and joint and several.

We have not presented separate financial staterapdtseparate disclosures have not been providextoung subsidiary guarantors
because management has determined such informatimt material to the holders of the above-memtibnotes.

The following supplemental financial informatiortséorth on an unconsolidated basis, our Balaneeh Statements of Operations
and Cash Flows for Cott Corporation, Cott Beverdges Guarantor Subsidiaries and our other suasas (the “Non-guarantor
Subsidiaries”)The supplemental financial information reflects mwestments and those of Cott Beverages Inc.gir thspective subsidiari
using the equity method of accounting.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011
Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Revenue, ne $ 41c¢ $ 215.( $ 252.¢ $ 33.1 $ (8.5 $ 534.1
Cost of sale: 34.¢ 186.( 223. 28.7 (8.5) 464.5
Gross profit 7.C 29.C 29.2 4.4 — 69.€
Selling, general and administrative

expense: 8.2 18.€ 14.¢ 3.t — 45.1
Operating income (1.2 10.4 14.4 0.¢ — 24.F
Other expense, n 0.4 0.4 — — — 0.8
Intercompany interest (income) expen:

net 2.7 — 1.7 — — —
Interest expense, n — 13.¢ 0.5 0.1 — 14.4
Income (loss) before income ta

expense (benefit) and equity incom:

(loss) 0.1 (3.9 12.2 0.8 — 9.3
Income tax expense (benel 1.1 1.3 (0.9 0.1 — 1.€
Equity income (loss 7.€ 1.3 (3.8 — (5.3 —
Net income (loss $ 6.8 $ (3.9 $ 9.3 $ 0.7 $ (5.9 $ 7.7
Less: Net income attributable to non-

controlling interest: — — — 0.¢ — 0.8
Net income (loss) attributed to Cott

Corporation $ 6.€ $ (3.9 $ 9.3 $ (0.2 $ (53 $ 6.8
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended April 3, 2010
Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec

Revenue, ne $ 40.1 $ 218.1 $ 804 $ 33.t $ (9.9 $ 362.¢
Cost of sale: 34.C 181.t 70.2 29.1 (9.9) 305.5
Gross profit 6.1 36.€ 10.1 4.4 — 57.2
Selling, general and administrative

expense: 7.8 14.2 7.0 3.4 — 32.£
Loss on disposal of property, plant &

equipmen — 0.2 — — — 0.2
Restructuring — (0.5 — — — (0.5
Operating (loss) income 2.7 22.7 3.1 ilC — 25.1
Other expense (income), r 1.7 0.1 0.2 (0.2 — 1.8
Intercompany interest (income) expen:

net 1.7 3.2 (1.5 — — —
Interest expense, n 0.1 5.9 0.1 0.1 — 6.2
(Loss) income before income ta

(benefit) expense and equity incom

(loss) (1.9 13t 4.3 1.1 — 17.1
Income tax (benefit) expen (1.C 5.1 0.1 0.2 — 4.4
Equity income (loss 12.2 15 9.8 — (23.6) —
Net income (loss $ 11t $ 9.9 $ 14 $ 0.¢ $ (23.6) $ 12.7
Less: Net income attributable to non-

controlling interest: — — — 1.2 — 1.2
Net income (loss) attributed to Cott

Corporation $ 11t $ 9.9 $ 14 $ (0.9 $ (23.6€) $ 11.5
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
As of April 2, 2011
Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash & cash equivalen $ 7.C $ 1.7 $ 20.€ $ 6.5 $ — $ 35.¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowar 26.7 104.: 140.Z 16.€ (42.9) 245.¢
Income taxes recoverak 0.1 3.€ 0.t 0.€ — 4.8
Inventories 20.€ 71.t 124.] 6.€ — 223.1
Prepaid expenses and other as 3.C 18.1 9.7 0.2 — 31.C
Total current assets 57.4 199.2 295.1 31.1 (42.9) 540.t
Property, plant & equipmel 50.¢ 183.Z 258.1 13.¢ — 506.¢
Goodwill 28.t 4.4 98.2 — — 131.1
Intangibles and other ass 1.4 111.1 229.¢ 20.4 — 362.:
Deferred income taxe 2.€ (0.9 — — — 2.2
Other tax receivabl 2.5 7.€ — — — 10.1
Due from affiliates 243.( 172.t 222.7 41.¢ (680.7) —
Investments in subsidiarir 232.2 365.( 560.¢ 191.¢ (1,349.9 —
Total assets $ 618. $ 1,042.¢ $ 1,664.¢ $ 299.2 $(2,072.) $ 1,552.¢
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Shor-term borrowings $ — $ 3%z $ — $ — $ — $ 35.2
Current maturities of lor-term debr — 5.4 0.1 0.4 — 5.6
Contingent consideration ei-out — 32.¢ — — — 32.¢
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 34.¢ 71.€ 177.€ 15.¢ (42.9) 257.¢
Total current liabilities 34.¢ 145.¢ 177.5 16.2 (42.9) 331.¢
Long-term debt — 600.t 1.t 2.4 — 604.<
Deferred income taxe — 32.C 10.Z 0.8 — 43.C
Other lon¢-term liabilities 0.3 3.¢ 17.1 — — 21.2
Due to affiliates 43.¢ 221.2 382.¢ 32.7 (680.7) —
Total liabilities 78.t 1,003.( 589.: 52.1 (722.9) 1,000.!
Equity
Capital stock, no pz 395.¢ 380.1 1,322.; 175.( (1,877.) 395.¢
Treasury stocl (2.2) — — — — (2.2)
Additional paic-in-capital 40.¢ 0.2 — — (0.2 40.¢
Retained earnings (defic 113.2 (352.€) (350.5) (38.9) 741t 113.:
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince (7.€) 11.€ 103.¢ 98.1 (213.9 (7.€)
Total Cott Corporation equit 539.¢ 39.€ 1,075.¢ 234.¢ (1,349.9 540.(
Non-controlling interest: — — — 12.2 — 12.2
Total equity 539.¢ 39.€ 1,075.¢ 247.1 (1,349.9 552.:
Total liabilities and equity $ 6184 $ 1042« $1664¢ B 299..  $(2,072.) $ 1,552.
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other ass
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings

Current maturities of lor-term debr
Contingent consideration ew-out
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pz

Treasury stocl

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince
Total Cott Corporation equit

Non-controlling interest:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As of January 1, 2011

Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 7.8 $ 9.1 $ 26 $ Bsd $ = $ 48.2
108.¢ 151.¢ 128.¢ 17.2 (192.5) 213.¢
- 1.2 1.9 0.2 - 0.2
18.1 66.1 124.¢ 6.7 — 215t
3.€ 19.: 8.1 1.7 — 32.7
138.1 247 . 286.( 31.: (192.5 510.:
50.C 180.4 259t 13.€ — 503.¢
27.4 4.t 98.c — — 130.2
1.3 114.¢ 233.¢ 21.4 — 371.1
3.7 — — (1.2) — 2.5
205 7.€ 1.2 — — 11.2
241.¢ 166.¢ 220.¢ 41.¢ (671.5) —
198.4 351.t 322.7 161.C (1,033.6) —
$ 663. $ 1,073.. $1,422.. $ 268.: $(1,897.6 $ 1,529.:
$ — % 7€ 8 — % -  $ — % 7
0.1 5.4 0.1 0.4 — 6.C
— 32.2 — — — 32.2
97.% 171.¢ 185.¢ 14.1 (192.5 276.¢
97.4 217.C 186.( 14.5 (2192.5) 322.7
— 601.¢ 1.4 2.5 (0.9) 605.
— 31.¢ 10.7 1.1 — 43.¢
— 5.4 16.¢ — (0.2) 22.:
432 219.¢ 377.: 31.7 (671.7) —
140.¢ 1,076.( 592.2 49.¢ (864.¢ 994.(
395.¢ 354.2 1,182.¢ 175.( (1,712.0 395.¢
(3.2) — — — — (3.2)
40.7 0.4 — — (0.3) 40.€
106.2 (350.9) (352.0) (36.4) 738.¢ 106.5
(16.9) (7.3) (0.6) 66.¢ (59.6) (17.5)
522.¢ (2.9 830.( 205.E (1,033.0 522.:
— — — 13.C — 13.C
522.¢ (2.9 830.( 218.F (1,033.0) 535.c
$ 663.C $ 1,073. $ 1,422.. $ 268.: $(1,897.6 $ 1,529.:
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011
Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating activities
Net income (loss $ 6.8 $ (3.9 $ 9.3 $ 0.7 $ (B3I $ 7.7
Depreciation & amortizatio 1.€ 8.6 11.¢ 1.5 — 23.t
Amortization of financing fee 0.1 0.7 0.1 — — 0.€
Share-based compensation
expense 0.1 0.7 0.3 — — 1.1
Increase (decrease) in deferred
income taxe! 0.3 1.1 (0.5 — — 0.6
Equity (loss) income, net of
distributions (7.8 1.3 3.8 — 5.3 —
Intercompany transactiol 4.€ 1.€ — — (6.2 —
Other nor-cash item: 0.4 (0.2 — — — 0.2
Net change in operating assets
and liabilities (32.9) (45.2) 4.8 6.5 6.2 (60.0)
Net cash (used in) provided b
operating activitie: (26.2) (37.9) 29.7 8.7 — (25.6)

Investing activities
Additions to property, plant &

equipmen: (0.7) (8.0 (3.9 — — (12.5)
Proceeds from sale of property,

plant & equipmen — — 0.1 — — 0.1
Advances to affiliate 19.¢ — (12.4) (6.0 (1.9 —
Net cash provided by (used in)

investing activities 19.1 (8.0 (16.7) (6.0 (1.9 (12.4)
Financing activities
Payments of lor-term deb! — (1.2 — (0.7 — 1.3
Borrowings under ABL — 99.7 — — — 99.7
Payments under AB — (72.5) — — — (72.5)
Advances from affiliate 6.C 12.4 (19.9) — 1.4 —
Distributions to non-controlling

interests — — — (1.5) — (1.5
Net cash provided by (used ir

financing activities 6.C 38.4 (19.9) (1.6) 1.4 24.L
Effect of exchange rate chang

on cast 0.3 — 0.8 0.1 — 1.2
Net (decrease) increase i

cash & cash equivalents (0.8) (7.4 (5.4 1.2 — (12.9)
Cash & cash equivalents,

beginning of period 7.8 9.1 26.C 5.3 — 48.2
Cash & cash equivalents, en

of period $ 7.C $ 1.7 $ 20.€ $ 6.5 $ — $ 35.¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Three Months Ended April 3, 2010

Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating activities
Net income (loss $ 11t $ 9.¢ $ 14 $ 0.9 $ (23.6 $ 12.7
Depreciation and amortizatic 1.€ 9.t 3.4 1.4 — 15.¢
Amortization of financing fee 0.1 0.4 — — — 0.t
Shar-based compensation expel — 0.4 0.1 — — 0.5
Decrease in deferred income ta — — (0.7 — — (0.2
Loss on disposal of property, plan
and equipmer — 0.2 — — — 0.2
Equity (loss) income, net of
distributions (12.9) (1.5 (9.9 — 23.€ —
Intercompany transactiol & 1.¢ — — (4.2 —
Loss on buyback of Note — 0.1 — — — 0.1
Lease contract termination g¢ — (0.9 — — — (0.9
Lease contract termination payme — (3.9 — — — (3.9
Other noi-cash item: 1.7 & — — — 3.C
Net change in operating assets and
liabilities (1.0) (14.2) (11.0) 1.7 4.2 (20.9)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activitie: 3.6 3.7 (3.4 4.0 — 8.2
Investing activities
Additions to property, plant &
equipmen (1.9 (3.1 (2.9) (0.9 — (7.6
Additions to intangible: — (1.7 — — — (1.7
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant & equipmen — — 0.1 — — 0.1
Advances to affiliate 1.2 — (3.7) (3.9 5.8 —
Net cash (used in) provided by
investing activities (0.6) (4.2) (5.4 (4.2) 5.8 (8.6)
Financing activities
Payments of lor-term debt — (23.7) — (0.3 — (13.9)
Borrowings under ABL — 51.¢ 6.7 — — 58.¢
Payments under AB — (48.€) (2.2 — — (50.¢)
Advances from affiliate 3.€ 3.C (1.7 — (5.9 —
Distributions to non-controlling
interests — — — (1.9 — (1.9
Financing fee: — (0.2 — — — (0.2)
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities 3.6 (7.0 3.4 (2.0 (5.8 (7.5)
Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash 0.4 — (0.3 0.1 — 0.2
Net increase (decrease) in cash
cash equivalents 7.€ (7.5 (5.7) (2.2 — (7.7)
Cash & cash equivalents
beginning of period 4.2 10.4 12.2 4.1 — 30.¢
Cash & cash equivalents, end of
period $ 11t $ 2.6 $ 6.5 $ 2.0 $ — $ 23.2
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Item 2. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

This discussion is intended to further the readenderstanding of the consolidated financial caodiaind results of operations of our
Company. It should be read in conjunction withfihancial statements included in this quarterlyortwn Form 10-Q and our annual report
on Form 10-K for the year ended January 1, 2014 ‘@010 Annual Report”). These historical finan@ttements may not be indicative of
our future performance. This Management’s Discusaind Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuft®perations contains a number of
forward-looking statements, all of which are basadur current expectations and could be affecyeithd uncertainties and risks referred to
under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A: Risk Factors inf @010 Annual Report.

Overview

We are the world’s largest retailer brand bevei@gapany. Our objective of creating sustainable itargn growth in revenue and
profitability is predicated on working closely witlur retailer partners to provide proven profitafeducts. As a “fast followersf innovative
products, our goal is to identify which new produate succeeding in the marketplace and develdtasionivate label products to provide
our retail partners and their consumers with higality products at a better value. This objectsétcreasingly relevant in more difficult
economic times.

The beverage market is subject to some seasonativas. Our beverage sales are generally higheéngithe warmer months and also
can be influenced by the timing of holidays, andther fluctuations. This seasonality also causesvorking capital needs to fluctuate with
inventory being higher in the first half of the yéa meet the peak summer demand and accountyabteideclining in the fall as customers
pay their higher-than-average outstanding balafroes the summer deliveries.

Retailer brand suppliers, such as us, typicallyajgeat low margins and therefore relatively sroh#inges in cost structures can
materially impact results.

Ingredient and packaging costs represent a sigmifiportion of our cost of sales. These costs @gest to global and regional
commodity price trends. Our three largest commeslitire aluminum, polyethylene terephthalate (“PE&$)n, and corn. We attempt to
manage our exposure to fluctuations in ingrediedt@ackaging costs of our products by implemenirice increases as needed and entering
into fixed price commitments for a portion of ongredient and packaging requirements. In 2010, vered into fixed price commitments
a majority of our forecasted aluminum requiremdot<2010, as well as more than half of our requigata for 2011.

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitibe {Cliffstar Acquisition”) of substantially all dhe assets and liabilities of Cliffstar
Corporation (“Cliffstar”)and its affiliated companies for approximately $80@illion payable in cash, $14.0 million in defegrconsideratio
to be paid over three years and contingent coreiderof up to $55.0 million. The first $15.0 mdh of the contingent consideration is based
upon the achievement of milestones in certain esiparprojects in 2010, which were achieved in 20k® remainder of the contingent
consideration is based on the achievement of cepiformance measures during the fiscal year gnthnuary 1, 2011. The contingent
consideration was $32.9 million as of April 2, 204hd is payable no later than July 29, 2011.

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€iar Corporation of certain objections to thefpemance measures used to
calculate the contingent consideration, and thersatserted a claim for amounts in excess of teuats accrued as contingent consideration
at April 2, 2011. We believe the contingent consitien has been properly calculated in accordarittetive asset purchase agreement an
have not adjusted our estimated fair value of tirdingent consideration for the objections raisgdhe seller. We believe that our estimated
fair value and assumptions are reasonable, but thesignificant judgment involved. We will resoltreese matters in accordance with the
asset purchase agreement and final amounts paidmatggyially vary from our current estimated faifue Changes in the fair value of
contingent consideration will be recorded in owat&tent of Operations

During the first quarter of 2011, our revenueséased 47.2%, or 45.8% excluding the impact of fprexchange. This increase was
due primarily to the Cliffstar Acquisition. Exclutl the impact of the Cliffstar Acquisition, and tingpact of foreign exchange, revenue was
flat.

In the U.S., we have been supplying Wal-Mart witivaite label carbonated soft drinks (“CSDs”) underexclusive supply agreement
dated December 21, 1998, between our wholly-ownédidiary Cott Beverages Inc. and Wal-Mart Stohes, (the “Exclusive U.S. Supply
Contract”). We also supply Wal-Mart and its affitd companies with a variety of products on a naiusive basis in the U.S., Canada,
United Kingdom and Mexico, including CSDs, cledil] and sparkling flavored waters, juice, juiceskea products, bottled water, energy
drinks and ready-to-drink teas. On January 27, 20@9eceived written notice from Wal-Mart statihgit Wal-Mart was exercising its right
to terminate, without cause, the Exclusive U.S.@ugontract. The termination is effective on Jagu28, 2012. This has the effect of
returning our relationship to more typical marlesis over time, and allows Wal-Mart to introduckestsuppliers in the future, if it so
desires. The termination provision of the Excludit&. Supply Contract provides for our exclusiyghtito supply CSDs to Wal-Mart in the
U.S. to be phased out over a period of three yiedosving notice of termination (the “Notice Peri)dAccordingly, we had the exclusive
right to supply at least two-thirds of Wal-Marttstal CSD volumes in the U.S. during the first 12ntia of the Notice Period, and we had the
exclusive right to supply at least one-third of VN&drt's total CSD volumes in the U.S. during the@®d 12 months of the Notice Period.
During the final 12 months of the Notice Periocrthis no minimum supply requirement. Notwithstagdhe notice of termination of the
Exclusive U.S. Supply Contract, we continue to syippal-Mart with all of its private label CSDs ihe¢ U.S. However, should Wal-Mart
choose to introduce an additional supplier to lidfiportion of its requirements for its privatdééd CSDs, our operating results could be
materially adversely affected. Sales to -Mart for the three months ended April 2, 2011 amlilA3, 2010 accounted for 33.0% and 32.99



total revenue.
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Summary financial results

Our net income for the three months ended Aprd@,1 (the “first quarter”) was $6.8 million or $@.per diluted share, compared with
$11.5 million or $0.14 per diluted share for theethmonths ended April 3, 2010.

The following items of significance impacted onaficial results for the first quarter of 2011:

» the Cliffstar Acquisition contributed $166.3 miltido revenue and, $11.6 million to operating incp

» gross profit declined to 13.0% for the first quaxdempared to 15.8% for the comparable prior yeaiog primarily due to higher
commodity and freight cost

e ourrevenue increased 47.2% from the comparabde peiar period. Absent foreign exchange impaciemere increased 45.8% in
the first quarter, due to the Cliffstar Acquisitidexcluding the impact of the Cliffstar Acquisitiamd the impact of foreign
exchange, revenue was fl

» our filled beverage 8-ounce equivalents (“beverzage volume”) increased 22.5% primarily due toGh#fstar Acquisition which
contributed a 30.1% increase in the North Amerjgerating segmen

» our selling, general and administrative (“SG&A")penses increased to $45.1 million from $32.4 millio the comparable prior
year period, primarily due to the Cliffstar Acquish, information technology costs, certain employelated costs ar
professional fees

» our interest expense increased to $14.4 milliomf6.2 million in the comparable prior year pergsinarily due to the issuance
of $375.0 million of senior notes that are due ept8mber 1, 2018 (tt*2018 Note”);

» the decrease in other expense of $1.0 million wasapily due to the write-off of financing fees $1.4 million in the comparable
prior year period; an

» our income tax expense decreased $2.8 millionarfitet quarter from the comparable prior year @é&rprimarily due to lower
pretax income

The following items of significance impacted onaficial results for the first quarter of 2010:

* increased competition in North America led to bagercase volume declines in that segment of 7.6t fhe comparable prior
year period

* new customer gains and improved product mix indte. led to a beverage case volume improvemertiahsegment of 12.3%
from the comparable prior year peric

» decreased gross profit margins to 15.8% as compare®.9% from the comparable prior year per

e anincrease in the foreign exchange rate for thea@an dollar, pound sterling and Mexican pesooaspared to the U.S. dollar
that resulted in a $12.5 million favorable impastrevenues and a $1.2 million favorable impact msg) profit;

* continued SG&A savings; ar
» tax expense of $4.4 million in the current yeacaspared to a prior tax benefit of $6.2 millic

25



Table of Contents

Non-GAAP Measures

In this report, we supplement our reporting of rawe determined in accordance with GAAP by excludirggimpact of foreign
exchange to separate the impact of currency exehiantg changes from Cott’s results of operatioms emsome cases, by excluding the
impact of Cliffstar. Additionally, Cott supplemerits reporting of selling, general and administratexpenses, cost of sales, gross profit, and
operating income in accordance with GAAP by exalgdhe impact of the Cliffstar Acquisition. Cottaxdes these items to better unders
trends in the business and the impact of the @iffAcquisition. Because Cott uses these adjuataddial results in the management of its
business and to understand business performanepdndent of the Cliffstar Acquisition, managemesiidves this supplemental information
is useful to investors for their independent evidueand understanding of Cott’s core businessoperdnce and the performance of its
management. The non-GAAP financial measures destabove are in addition to, and not meant to Insidered superior to, or a substitute
for, Cott’s financial statements prepared in acaoog with GAAP. In addition, the non-GAAP finanamaéasures included in this report
reflect management’s judgment of particular itears] may be different from, and therefore may natdraparable to, similarly titled
measures reported by other companies.

26



Table of Contents

The following table summarizes our Consolidatedesteents of Operations as a percentage of revemugfd 2, 2011 and April 3,

2010:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Revenue

Cost of sale:

Gross profit

Selling, general, and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm
Restructuring

Operating incom:

Other expense, n

Interest expense, n

Income before income tax

Income tax expens

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest:
Net income attributed to Cott Corporati

Depreciation & amortizatio

For the Three Months Ended

April 2, 2011 April 3, 2010

$ % $ %
534.1 100.C 362.¢ 100.C
464.F 87.C 305.7 84.2
69.¢€ 13.C 57.2 15.¢
45.1 8.4 32.4 8.6
— — 0.2 0.1
— — (0.5) -0.1
24.F 4.€ 25.1 6.9
0.8 0.1 1.8 0.t
14.4 2.8 6.2 1.7
9.2 1.7 17.1 4.7
1.€ 0.3 4.4 1.2
7.7 14 12.7 3.E
0.¢ 0.1 1.2 0.3

6.8 1.3 11.5 3.2
23.€ 4.4 15.¢ 4.4
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The following table summarizes our revenue and aipeg income by operating segment for April 2, 2@ht April 3, 2010:

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. Dollars April 2, 2011 April 3, 2010
Revenu

North America $ 428.¢ $ 263.c
United Kingdom 86.: 79.71
Mexico 11.4 11.€
RCI 7.€ 8.2
Total $ 534.] $ 362.¢

Operating income (los:
North America

United Kingdom
Mexico

RCI

Total

Revenues are attributed to operating segments loawstiek location of the plant.

20.€ $
3.

(1.5)
2.2

24.F $

20.¢
3.C

(L.8)
3.C

25.1

The following table summarizes our beverage casenve by operating segment for April 2, 2011 andiApr2010:

(in millions of cases
Volume 8oz. equivalent cas- Total Beverage (including concentra

North America
United Kingdom
Mexico

RCI

Total

Volume 80z. equivalent cas Filled Beverage
North America

United Kingdom

Mexico

RCI

Total

The revenue by product table for the three montiadee April 3, 2010 has been revised to separatelsent the category “Juice,” which

is a now significant portion of our revenue du¢he Cliffstar Acquisition.
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For the Three Months Ended

April 2, 2011 April 3, 2010
195.] 152.(
43.5 44.t

8.4 8.3

82.5 84.5
329.5 289.]
170.¢ 130.¢
39.1 39.2

8.4 8.3

218.1 178.]
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The following tables summarize revenue by prodacifpril 2, 2011 and April 3, 2010, respectively:

For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $ 156.: $ 33.1 $ 9.2 $— $198.7
Juice 160.C 2.C 0.8 — 162.¢
Concentrats 2.3 0.2 — 7.€ 10.1
All other products 110.Z 51.C 1.3 — 162.5
Total $ 428.¢ $ 86.: $11.4 $ 7€ $534.1
For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011
(in millions of physical case: North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
80z. volume
Carbonated soft drink 78.7 20.2 6.€ — 105.¢
Juice 37.4 0.€ 0.€ — 38.€
Concentrate 24.€ 4.t — 82.t 111.€
All other products 54.4 18.1 1.2 — 73.7
Total 195.1 43.F 8.4 82.F 329.f
For the Three Months Ended April 3, 2010
(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenut
Carbonated soft drink $ 166.7 $ 33.t $10.£ $— $210.¢
Juice — 1.4 0.2 — 1.7
Concentrate 2.C 1.2 — 8.2 11.5
All other products 94.t 43.t 1.1 — 139.1
Total $ 263.2 $ 79.7 $11.¢ $ 8.2 $362.¢
For the Three Months Ended April 3, 2010
(in_millions of physical case: North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
80z. volume
Carbonated soft drink 80.¢€ 21.2 7.C — 108.¢
Juice — 0.4 0.2 — 0.7
Concentrate 21.t 5.3 — 84.c 111.1
All other products 49.¢ 17.t 1.C — 68.4
Total 152.( 44.¢ 8.2 84.: 289.1

29



Table of Contents

Results of operations
The following table summarizes the change in reedmuoperating segment for the three months engeil 2 2011:

For the Three Months Ended

April 2, 2011
United

(in millions of U.S. dollars Cott North America Kingdom Mexico RCI
Change in revent $171.2 $ 165.¢ $ 6.€ $(0.9) $(0.€)
Impact of foreign exchan¢t (5.0 (1.9 (2.5) (0.6) —
Change excluding foreign exchar $ 166.2 $ 163.7 $ 41 $(1.0) $(0.€)
Percentage change in revet 47.2% 62.5% 8.2% -3.4% -7.3%
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgs 45.8% 62.2% 5.1% -8.5% -7.3%
Impact of Cliffstar Acquisitior (166.9) (166.9) — — —
Change excluding foreign exchange and CliffstarAsitjon $ (0.3 $ (2.6) $ 41 $ (1.0 $(0.€)
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgghand

Cliffstar Acquisition 0.C% -1.C% 5.1% -8.5% -7.3%

1

exchange rates less the current ’s revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra
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Revenue- Revenue increased $171.2 million or 47.2% irfilsé quarter from the comparable prior year peribde Cliffstar
Acquisition contributed $166.3 million to reventecluding the impact of the Cliffstar Acquisition@foreign exchange impact, revenue’
flat.

North America revenue increased $165.6 million2©66 in the first quarter from the comparable pyiear period. The Cliffstar
Acquisition contributed $166.3 million to revenixcluding the impact of foreign exchange and th&star Acquisition, revenue decreased
1.0% in the first quarter. Net selling price pevérage case (which is net revenue divided by bgeetase volume) decreased slightly in the
first quarter from the comparable prior year period

U.K. revenue increased $6.6 million or 8.3% in fin&t quarter from the comparable prior year pefpoignarily due to improved product
mix (primarily increases in sports isotonic prodjciNet selling price per beverage case increa$8d &r the first quarter from the
comparable prior year period. Absent foreign exgeampact, U.K. revenue increased 5.1% in the fjustrter.

Mexico revenue decreased $0.4 million or 3.4% enfitst quarter from the comparable prior year garprimarily due to a 4.2%
decrease in net selling price per beverage casserilioreign exchange impact, revenue decreasea ®i5the first quarter as compared to
the comparable prior year period.

RCI revenue decreased $0.6 million or 7.3% in e §uarter from the comparable prior year perghgk primarily to a 2.1% decline in
total case volume. Net selling price per beverape avas flat in the first quarter from the compkergiior year period. RCI primarily sells
concentrate case volume.

Cost of Sales- Cost of sales represented 87.0% of revenue ifirfteuarter compared to 84.2% in the comparabler year period.
Excluding the impact of the Cliffstar Acquisitiotgst of sales represented 86.5% of revenue. Theteales as a percentage of revenue for
Cliffstar was 88.1%. Variable costs represente@%/0of total sales in the first quarter and in thenparable prior year period. Major eleme
of these variable costs included ingredient and@giag costs, distribution costs and fees paidhitol{party manufacturers. The increase in
cost of sales was primarily due to higher commaodity freight costs.

Gross Profit— Gross profit as a percentage of revenue decreask?i0% in the first quarter from 15.8% in thengarable prior year
period. Excluding the impact of the Cliffstar Acstion, gross profit as a percentage of revenuérdmtto 13.5% in the first quarter from
15.8% in the comparable prior year period.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSG&A increased $12.7 million or 39.2% in thetfigsiarter from the comparable prior
year period. The Cliffstar Acquisition contribut$8.2 million of SG&A costs, or 25.3% of the incream the first quarter. Excluding tl
impact of the Cliffstar Acquisition, SG&A increas#d.5 million or 13.9% from the comparable prioay@eriod. The increase was primarily
due to certain employee related costs, informagohnology costs, and professional fees. As a ptage of revenue, SG&A decreased to
8.4% in the first quarter from 8.9% in the compé&glyior year period.

Restructuring —Restructuring gains decreased $0.5 million in trst fuarter from the comparable prior year peritite decrease was
due primarily to a gain of $0.5 million on a leasmtract termination in the comparable prior yesniqu.

Operating Income- Operating income was $24.5 million in the firsgter compared to $25.1 million in the comparatier year
period. The Cliffstar Acquisition contributed $1Tllion to operating income in the first quartexcluding the impact of the Cliffstar
Acquisition, operating income declined by $12.2lioil or 48.6%.

Other Expense (Income} Other expense decreased $1.0 million in thedustrter as compared to the comparable prior ye@og
primarily due to a $1.4 million write-off of finaimg fees in the prior year period.

Interest Expense- Net interest expense increased $8.2 million irfilsé quarter from the comparable prior year peridae primarily tc
a higher average debt balance resulting from theaisce of the 2018 Notes.

Income Taxes -We recorded income tax expense of $1.6 milliorhanfirst quarter compared with $4.4 million in #@mparable prior
year period. The decrease was due primarily to lquetax income
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Liquidity and Financial Condition

The following table summarizes our cash flows fer three months ended April 2, 2011 and April 3,®28s reported in our
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the acaagipg Consolidated Financial Statements:

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars April 2, 2011 April 3, 2010
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi $ (25.6 $ 8.2
Net cash used in investing activit| (12.9) (8.6)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 24.4 (7.5)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 1.2 0.2
Net decrease in cash & cash equival (12.9 (7.7)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of pel 48.2 30.¢
Cash & cash equivalents, end of per $ 3b:& $ 23.2

Financial, and Capital Resources and Liquidity

As of April 2, 2011, we had total debt of $648.2lion and $35.8 million of cash and cash equivadesdmpared to $268.9 million of
debt and $23.2 million of cash and cash equivalastsf April 3, 2010.

We believe that our level of resources, which idelsicash on hand, available borrowings under thet-dmsed lending credit facility
(the “ABL facility”) and funds provided by operatis, will be adequate to meet our expenses, capip@nditures, and debt service
obligations for the next twelve months. Our abitiblygenerate cash to meet our current expensedednicgervice obligations will depend on
our future performance. If we do not have enougtihda pay our debt service obligations or if theLABcility, the 8.375% senior notes that
are due on November 15, 2017 (the “2017 Notes")her2018 Notes were to become currently due, réthmaturity or as a result of a
breach, we may be required to take actions suelmasding the credit agreement governing our ABllifpor the indentures governing our
2017 Notes and 2018 Notes, refinancing all or piaur existing debt, selling assets, incurringiiddal indebtedness or raising equity. For
periods extending beyond twelve months, we belteaeour ability to generate cash to meet our egegmnd debt service obligations and to
otherwise reduce our debt as anticipated will prilpmaepend on our ability to retain a substangialount of volume from our key customers
and maintain the profitability of our businesswi do not generate sufficient cash from operat@mmsave excess debt availability to meet our
expenses and debt service obligations or if the A&lllity, the 2017 Notes or the 2018 Notes werbdéoome currently due, either at maturity
or as a result of a breach, we may be requiredk® &ctions such as amending our ABL facility,itftienture governing the 2017 Notes, or
the indenture governing the 2018 Notes, refinanaihgr part of our existing debt, selling assétsurring additional indebtedness or raising
equity. If we need to seek additional financinggréhis no assurance that this additional finaneiitigoe available.

Should we desire to consummate significant acgoisiipportunities or undertake significant expansgtivities, our capital needs
would increase and could result in our need todwvailable amounts under the ABL facility, incseavailable borrowings under our ABL
facility or access public or private debt and eguaitarkets.

As of April 2, 2011, our total availability undére ABL facility was $258.4 million, which was based our borrowing base (accounts
receivables, inventory, and fixed assets) as ofl Apr 2011 (the March month-end under the termthefcredit agreement governing our
ABL facility), and we had $35.2 million of ABL baswings outstanding and $9.1 million in outstandigtiers of credit. As a result, our
excess availability under the ABL facility was $214nillion. Each month’s borrowing base is not effee until submitted to the lenders,
which usually occurs on the fifteenth day of thioiwing month.
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Operating activities

Cash used in operating activities was $25.6 mildaning the first quarter compared to cash provide®8.2 million in the comparable
prior year period. The $33.8 million decrease wae t timing of accounts payable, increased intened a prior year tax recoverable, which
we expect to be non-recurring.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities was $12.4 milliloming the first quarter compared to $8.6 millinrthe comparable prior year period,
with the $3.8 million increase due primarily toianrease in capital expenditures.

Financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities was $24.4ionlduring the first quarter compared to cash usfe®7.5 million in the first quarter
of 2010. The change was primarily due to an in@edset borrowings under the ABL facility of $198llion, a $11.9 million decrease in
payments on long-term debt, and a $0.3 million e&se in distributions to non-controlling interests.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as defimer Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K as of A@riR011.

Contractual Obligations

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfie year ended January 1,
2011.

Debt
Asset Based Lending Facili

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agreémvgh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thattecean ABL facility to provid
financing for our North America, U.K. and Mexicoarating segments. In connection with the Cliffftaguisition, we refinanced the ABL
facility on August 17, 2010 to, among other thingsvide for the Cliffstar Acquisition, the issua&naf the 2018 Notes and the application of
net proceeds therefrom, the underwritten publierrffy of 13,340,000 common shares at a price @&7#&per share and the application of net
proceeds therefrom and to increase the amountdaifor borrowings to $275.0 million. We drew dowportion of the indebtedness under
the ABL facility in order to fund the Cliffstar Aeggition. We incurred $5.4 million of financing feé connection with the refinancing of the
ABL facility. The financing fees are being amortizesing the straight-line method over a four-yesiqal.

As of April 2, 2011, we had $35.2 million in borrowgs under the ABL facility outstanding. The conmmént fee was 0.5% per annum
of the unused commitment, which was $227.6 milksrof April 2, 2011.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued $375.0 million of20&8 Notes. The issuer of the 2018 Notes is CeteBages Inc., but we and most
of our U.S., Canadian and United Kingdom subsidmguarantee the 2018 Notes. The interest on th#& I96tes is payable semi-annually on
March 1st and Septembersil of each year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in costien with the 2018 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the straight-
line method over an eight-year period, which repnés the duration of the 2018 Notes. The amortimagixpense calculated under the straight-
line method does not differ materially from theeetive-interest method.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 milliorhef2017 Notes. The 2017 Notes were issued at an$iBidn discount. The issuer
of the 2017 Notes is Cott Beverages Inc., but wkranst of our U.S., Canadian and United Kingdonsgliliries guarantee the 2017 Notes.
The interest on the 2017 Notes is payable semiallynon May 15" and November ¥5 of each year.
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We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in costien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the straight-
line method over an eight-year period, which repnés the duration of the 2017 Notes. The amortimatixpense calculated under the straight-
line method does not differ materially from theeetive-interest method.

8% Senior Subordinated Notes due in 2011

We repurchased the remaining outstanding 8% senlwordinated notes due December 15, 2011 (the “R@1ds”) on February 1,
2010, and recorded a loss on buyback of $0.1 millidhe 2011 Notes acquired by us have been retiretlyve have discontinued the payn
of interest.

Credit Ratings and Covenant Compliance
Credit Ratings

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfie year ended January 1,
2011.

Covenant Compliance
8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

Under the indenture governing the 2018 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including camenthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extteqps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oaka distributions, repurchase equity
securities, prepay subordinated debt or make certgestments, (i) incur additional debt or isseetain disqualified stock or preferred sto
(iii) create or incur liens on assets securing Iotddness, (iv) merge or consolidate with anothemgamy (applies only to Cott Corporation i
Cott Beverages Inc., our subsidiary and issuen®2018 Notes) or sell all or substantially albaf assets taken as a whole, (v) enter into
transactions with affiliates and (vi) sell all atbstantially all of the assets of a guarantor gliasy of Cott Corporation. We have been in
compliance with all of the covenants under the 2Bd8s and there have been no amendments to ahyeuenants since the 2018 Notes
were issued.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

Under the indenture governing the 2017 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including caménthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extteps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oaka distributions, repurchase equity
securities, prepay subordinated debt or make centgestments, (i) incur additional debt or isseetain disqualified stock or preferred sto
(iii) create or incur liens on assets securing Iotddness, (iv) merge or consolidate with anothemgamy (applies only to Cott Corporation i
Cott Beverages Inc., our subsidiary and issueh@®017 Notes) or sell all or substantially albaf assets taken as a whole, (v) enter into
transactions with affiliates and (vi) sell all atbstantially all of the assets of a guarantor glidsy of Cott Corporation. We have been in
compliance with all of the covenants under the 2RBb%es and there have been no amendments to ahyeuenants since the 2017 Notes
were issued.

ABL Facility

Under the credit agreement governing the ABL fagilive and our restricted subsidiaries are suligeatnumber of business and
financial covenants, including a covenant requidmminimum fixed charge coverage ratio of at ldastto 1.0 effective when and if excess
availability is less than the greater of (a) $3@i0ion and (b) the lesser of (i) 12.5% of the ambaf the aggregate borrowing base or
(i) $37.5 million. Although the covenant was noggered as of April 2, 2011, our fixed charge aage ratio as calculated under this
covenant was greater than 1.1 to 1.0. If availghisi less than $37.5 million, the lenders willgadkominion over the cash and will apply
excess cash to reduce amounts owing under théyagihe credit agreement governing the ABL fagiliequires us to maintain aggregate
availability of at least $15.0 million. We weredompliance with all of the applicable covenantsamttie ABL facility on April 2, 2011.
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Capital Structure

Since January 1, 2011, equity has increased by$iiflion. The increase was primarily the resulnet income of $6.8 million, the
issuance of $1.1 million in treasury stock relatedtock-based awards that vested during thediratter, and a decrease in other
comprehensive loss of $9.9 million primarily rethte a foreign currency translation gain on theassiets of self-sustaining foreign
operations, offset in part by a $0.7 million deseea equity in non-controlling interests.

Dividend Payments

There are certain restrictions on the paymentwtidhds under our ABL facility and under the indees governing the 2017 Notes and
2018 Notes. No dividends were paid in 2010 or dytire first quarter of 2011 and we do not expeqay dividends in the forseeable future.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies require managemenhake estimates and assumptions that affecefieeted amounts in the
consolidated financial statements and the acconipgmpotes. These estimates are based on histesipakience, the advice of external
experts or on other assumptions management believ@sreasonable. Where actual amounts differ etimates, revisions are included in
the results for the period in which actuals becémawn. Historically, differences between estimated actuals have not had a significant
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Critical accounting policies and estimates usegrépare the financial statements are discussedowitudit Committee as they are
implemented and on an annual basis.

We have no material changes to our Critical AccimgnPolicies and Estimates disclosure as filedunAnnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended January 1, 2011.

Forward-looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this reponay contain statements relating to future eventisfature results. These statements are
“forward-looking” within the meaning of the Privagecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and applile Canadian securities legislation
and involve known and unknown risks, uncertaintieijre expectations and other factors that mageaatual results, performance or
achievements of Cott Corporation to be materiaifiecent from any future results, performance dniaeements expressed or implied by s
forward-looking statements. Such statements in¢lodeare not limited to, statements that relatergjections of sales, earnings, earnings per
share, cash flows, capital expenditures or otmamitial items, discussions of estimated futuremegeenhancements and cost savings. These
statements also relate to our business strategys gad expectations concerning our market posifidore operations, margins, profitability,
liquidity and capital resources. Generally, wordstsas “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could;endeavor,” “estimate,” “expect,”

“intend,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “predict,” “project,” “should” and similar terms and phrases are usddentify forward-looking statements in
this report and in the documents incorporated imréport by reference. These forward-looking stetets reflect current expectations
regarding future events and operating performandeaae made only as of the date of this report.

The forward-looking statements are not guarantéégture performance or events and, by their natare based on certain estimates
and assumptions regarding interest and foreignamgd rates, expected growth, results of operatimréormance, business prospects and
opportunities and effective income tax rates, whith subject to inherent risks and uncertaintiesteMal factors or assumptions that were
applied in drawing a conclusion or making an estins®t out in forward-looking statements may inelugut are not limited to assumptions
regarding management’s current plans and estimatesbility to remain a low cost supplier, andeeffive management of commaodity costs.
Although we believe the assumptions underlyingeatfesward-looking statements are reasonable, atlyesie assumptions could prove to be
inaccurate and, as a result, the forwtaking statements based on those assumptions poaVe to be incorrect. Our operations involve s
and uncertainties, many of which are outside ofamuntrol, and any one or any combination of théslesrand uncertainties could also affect
whether the forward-looking statements ultimatelyve to be correct. These risks and uncertaintielside, but are not limited to, those
described in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in ddmnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended aana, 2011, and those described from
time to time in our future reports filed with thecrities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and Ceameskcurities regulatory authorities.
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The following are some of the factors that couléetf our financial performance, including but riatited to sales, earnings and cash
flows, or could cause actual results to differ matly from estimates contained in or underlying forward-looking statements:

our ability to realize the expected benefits of @liéfstar Acquisition because of integration diffities and other challenge
risks associated with the Asset Purchase Agreeargated into in connection with the Cliffstar Acsjtion;

the effectiveness of Cliffst's system of internal control over financial repugti

significant transaction and acquisit-related costs incurred in connection with the Gtdf Acquisition;

the effectiveness of Cliffst's system of internal control over financial repugti

our ability to compete successfully in the highbmpetitive beverage catego

changes in consumer tastes and preferences faingxqisoducts and our ability to develop and timialynch new products that
appeal to such changing consumer tastes and preéss;

loss of or a reduction in sales to any significzugtomer, particularly W-Mart;

fluctuations in commaodity prices and our abilityptass on increased costs to our customers, anohfaet of those increased
prices on our volume:!

our ability to manage our operations successf

currency fluctuations that adversely affect thehexge between the U.S. dollar and the British pateding, the Euro, the
Canadian dollar, the Mexican peso and other cuiesr

our ability to maintain favorable arrangements egdtionships with our supplier

our ability to remediate an identified material keess;

the substantial indebtedness we incurred and alityab meet our obligations

our ability to maintain compliance with the covetsaand conditions under our debt agreeme
fluctuations in interest rate

credit rating downgrade

further deterioration of the capital marke

our ability to fully realize the expected cost $md and/or operating efficiencies from our restrtingy activities;
any disruption to production at our beverage cotraées or other manufacturing facilitie

our ability to protect our intellectual proper

the impact of regulation and regulatory, invesfigaaind legal action:

the impact of proposed taxes on soda and othergsdgaks;

unseasonably cold or wet weather, which could redlenand for our beverag:

the impact of national, regional and global eveimtsiuding those of a political, economic, businaeg competitive natur:
our ability to recruit, retain, and integrate ne@magement and a new management struc

our exposure to intangible asset ri

volatility of our stock price

our ability to maintain compliance with the listingquirements of the New York Stock Exchar
our ability to renew our collective bargaining agmreents on satisfactory terms;

disruptions in our information systen

compliance with product health and safety standanc

liability for injury or illness caused by the comsption of contaminated produc
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For a further list and description of various riskedevant factors and uncertainties that couldseduture results or events to differ
materially from those expressed or implied in armard-looking statements, see the “Risk Factonsl ‘dManagement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” sections contained elsewhere in this docuyas well as in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2@b¥ subsequent Reports on Form 10-Q and FornaBeKother filings with the SEC and
Canadian securities regulatory authorities.

We undertake no obligation to update any infornmationtained in this report or to publicly reledse tesults of any revisions to
forward-looking statements to reflect events ocwinstances of which we may become aware of afteddte of this report. Undue reliance
should not be placed on forward-looking statemeantd, all future written and oral forward-lookingt&ments attributable to us or persons
acting on our behalf are expressly qualified irirteatirety by the foregoing.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk
We do not trade market risk sensitive instruments.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Company’s North America operating segment pasek a portion of its inventory for its Canadiarragions through transactions
denominated and settled in U.S. dollars, a curreiiitgrent from the functional currency of the Cdraa operations. These inventory
purchases are subject to exposure from movememtscimnge rates. The Company uses foreign exctiangard contracts to hedge
operational exposures resulting from changes isetliereign currency exchange rates. The interti@fdreign exchange contracts is to
provide predictability in the Company’s overall tefructure. These foreign exchange contractsiechat fair value, have maturities less than
one year. As of April 2, 2011, the Company had tamding foreign exchange forward contracts withiaral amounts of $16.0 million.

Debt Obligations and Interest Rates

We have exposure to interest rate risk from thetantling principal amounts of our short-term anmdyiterm debt. Our longerm debt i
fixed and our short-term debt is variable. Our Afatility is vulnerable to fluctuations in the U $hort-term base rate and the LIBOR rate. At
current debt levels as of April 2, 2011, a 100 $asint increase in the current per annum inteegstfor our ABL facility (excluding the $9.1
million outstanding letters of credit) would resint$0.4 million of additional interest expenseidgrthe next year. This change would not be
material to our cash flows or our results of ogeret. The weighted average interest rate of out detstanding at April 2, 2011 was 7.9%.

Commodity Price Risk

We have no material changes to the disclosureiemthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Kifi@ year ended January 1,
2011.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaes as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15%¢ledSecurities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Camijsananagement, under the supervision and witlp#rgcipation of the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officearried out an evaluation of the effectivenesthefdesign and operation of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures damifary 1, 2011 (the “Evaluation”). Based uponBhaluation, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer comdéd that, as of April 2, 2011, the Company’s disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15(d(e) of the Exchange Act) were not effective assallt of the material weakness that is descriledovi
We have taken steps and are taking the actionsildedanore fully below under “Remediation Activisieto remediate the material weakness.
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As described in the Company’s Form 10-K for theryaaded January 1, 2011, the Company did not maiefective controls over the
communication and evaluation of a certain custosndiscount and pricing programs. The Company’srobptocedures identified certain
differences requiring further investigation, anairol procedures in place were either not adequatesigned or did not operate effectively to
ensure that these differences with financial repgirimplications were communicated completely, aately, and in a timely manner to
appropriate accounting personnel. This controlailerficy resulted in immaterial pricing errors impagtrevenue, accounts receivable and
accrued expenses with respect to one of our cussodueing the quarter ended October 2, 2010 that werrected through a revision to the
Company’s interim financial statements in Note 22he Annual Report on Form XOfor the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011. Addily,
this control deficiency, if not remedied, coulduksn further misstatements of the aforementioaecbunts and disclosures that would result
in a material misstatement of the annual or intesimsolidated financial statements that would roptevented or detected. Accordingly, the
Company’s management determined this control daf@i constituted a material weakness and has deexirthat it continues to exist as of
April 2, 2011.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The remediation efforts noted below represent caamyinternal control over financial reporting ithgrthe quarter ended April 2, 2011
that have materially affected, or are reasonakBlyito materially affect, the Company’s internahtrol over financial reporting.

Remediation Activities

Beginning in January 2011, with oversight from fhelit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directdiree Company’s management
began to design and implement certain remediatieasures to address the above-described materighesgsaand enhance the Company’s
system of internal control over financial reportimgluding expanded reviews and evaluations ofiigecustomer accounts receivable aging
and promotional activities reports and re-assigriro€eenior accounting personnel to oversee theifipeustomer activities.

The Company believes the remediation measurestréhgthen the Company’s internal control overrfiial reporting and remediate
the material weakness identified. However, thesasues had not been in operation long enough ¢éctafély measure their operating
effectiveness and thus, the identified materialkmeas has not been fully remediated as of Ap@,1. We will continue to monitor the
effectiveness of these remediation measures ahdmake any changes and take such other actionsvthdeem appropriate given the
circumstances.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Reference is made to the legal proceedings descibaeur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgehr ended January 1, 2011.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Reference is made to the detailed descriptionsaffeactors in ltem 1A: Risk Factors in our Annu@rt on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 1, 20
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ltem 6. Exhibits

Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Forr-K dated February 28, 200"

3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Cotiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to 8orm 10-Q filed May
10, 2007)

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002 for the quarterly period enc
April 2, 2011 (filed herewith)

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fi@2he quarterly period ended
April 2, 2011 (filed herewith)

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002 for the quarterly period enc
April 2, 2011 (furnished herewith

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period ended
April 2, 2011 (furnished herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

COTT CORPORATION
(Registrant’

Date: May 11, 201 s/ Neal Craven
Neal Craven:
Chief Financial Office
(On behalf of the Compan'

Date: May 11, 201 Isl Gregory Leitel
Gregory Leitel
Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and
Assistant Secretal
(Principal Accounting Officer
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Exhibit Index

Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Forr-K dated February 28, 200"

3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Cotiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to 8orm 10-Q filed May
10, 2007)

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002 for the quarterly period enc
April 2, 2011 (filed herewith)

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fi@2he quarterly period ended
April 2, 2011 (filed herewith)

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002 for the quarterly period enc
April 2, 2011 (furnished herewith

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period ended
April 2, 2011 (furnished herewith
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Jerry Fowden, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet

this report;

4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including itnsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being preparec

Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over faiakreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentadsineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

May 11, 2011

All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

[sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowder

Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Neal Cravens, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet

this report;

4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including itnsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being preparec

Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over faiakreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentadsineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

May 11, 2011

All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ Neal Craven
Neal Craven:
Chief Financial Officel



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jerry Fowden, Chief Executived®ffof Cott Corporation (the “Company”), has exedutis certification in connection
with the filing with the Securities and Exchangen@nission of the Company’s Quarterly Report on F&0¥Q for the quarter ended April 2,
2011 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsisctknowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of
the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the 11 day of May, 2011.

/sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowder

Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Neal Cravens, Chief Financialo®ffof Cott Corporation (the “Company”), has exedutis certification in connection
with the filing with the Securities and Exchangen@nission of the Company’s Quarterly Report on F&0¥Q for the quarter ended April 2,
2011 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsisctknowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of
the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the 11 day of May, 2011.

/s/ Neal Craven
Neal Craven:
Chief Financial Officel



